
   
   

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

#2013-015 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 


DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY 

COMPTROLLER OF THE CURRENCY 


In the Matter of: ) 
Robert A. Morrill ) 
Former Retail Branch Officer ) AA-EC-12-115 
Wachovia Bank, N.A., Charlotte, NC ) 
(now Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., Sioux Falls, SD) ) 

CONSENT ORDER 

WHEREAS, the Comptroller of the Currency of the United States of America 

(“Comptroller”) intends to initiate prohibition proceedings against Robert A. Morrill 

(“Respondent”), pursuant to 12 U.S.C. § 1818(e), on the basis of Respondent’s activities 

when he worked as a Retail Bank Officer at Wachovia Bank, N.A., Charlotte, North 

Carolina, now Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., Sioux Falls, South Dakota (“Bank”), in one of 

the Bank’s Arlington, Virginia branches, during the period from April 28, 2008 until July 

30, 2009; 

WHEREAS, in the interest of cooperation and to avoid the costs associated with 

future administrative and judicial proceedings with respect to the above matter, 

Respondent, without admitting or denying any wrongdoing, desires to enter into this 

Consent Order (“Order”), issued pursuant to 12 U.S.C. § 1818(e); 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is stipulated by and between the Comptroller, through his 

duly authorized representative, and Respondent that: 
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Article I 

JURISDICTION 

(1) The Bank is a national banking association, chartered and examined by the 

Comptroller, pursuant to the National Bank Act of 1864, as amended, 12 U.S.C. § 1 et 

seq. Accordingly, the Bank is an “insured depository institution” as that term is defined 

in 12 U.S.C. § 1813(c)(2). 

(2) Respondent is a former Retail Bank Officer of the Bank and is an 

“institution-affiliated party” of the Bank as that term is defined in 12 U.S.C. § 1813(u), 

having served in such capacity within six (6) years from the date hereof (see 12 U.S.C. 

§ 1818(i)(3)). 

(3) Pursuant to 12 U.S.C. § 1813(q), the Comptroller is the “appropriate 

Federal banking agency” to maintain an enforcement proceeding against institution-

affiliated parties. Therefore, Respondent is subject to the authority of the Comptroller to 

initiate and maintain prohibition action against him pursuant to 12 U.S.C. § 1818(e).  

Article II 

COMPTROLLER’S FINDINGS 

The Comptroller finds, and Respondent neither admits nor denies, the following: 

(1) In July 2009, Respondent helped a Bank customer (“Customer A”), a 

personal friend, cash eight (8) fraudulent checks at the Bank.  The scheme through which 

Customer A cashed these checks unfolded as follows: 
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(a) Customer A would present the checks, which were drawn on accounts that 

various Bank customers maintained at other financial institutions, to 

Respondent.  Respondent would then personally approve each check.  

Respondent’s approval was necessary because the checks did not conform 

to the Bank’s internal guidelines. 

(b)	 The checks were unauthorized and fraudulent.  In addition, the signatures 

on many of the checks were forged.  Respondent had reason to suspect 

that the checks were fraudulent, and he even witnessed Customer A forge 

the signature on one of the checks. 

(c)	 When the Bank attempted to redeem the fraudulent checks at the financial 

institutions on which they were drawn, the checks were returned for 

insufficient funds. 

(d)	 When the checks were returned, the Bank suffered a $28,292 loss. 

(2) In addition to facilitating fraudulent checks, Respondent also sent a 

fraudulent wire transfer from one customer’s (“Customer B”) account at the Bank into an 

account that one of Respondent’s relatives owned at a different financial institution.  To 

facilitate the transfer, Respondent forged Customer B’s signature and made false 

statements to Bank personnel. 

(3)	 By reason of the foregoing conduct, Respondent violated 
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18 U.S.C. §§ 656 and 1343; committed reckless unsafe or unsound practices; engaged in 

a pattern or practice of misconduct; exhibited both personal dishonesty and a willful or 

continuing disregard for the Bank’s safety and soundness; and caused a loss to the Bank. 

Article III 

ORDER OF PROHIBITION
 

Respondent consents to, and it is ORDERED that: 


(1) With respect to the institutions and agencies set forth in paragraph (2) of 

this Article, Respondent shall not: 

(a)	 participate in any manner in the conduct of their affairs; 

(b)	 solicit, procure, transfer, attempt to transfer, vote, or attempt to vote 

any proxy, consent, or authorization with respect to any voting 

rights; 

(c)	 violate any voting agreement previously approved by the 

“appropriate Federal banking agency,” as defined in 12 U.S.C. 

§ 1813(q) (as amended); or 

(d)	 vote for a director, or serve or act as an “institution-affiliated party,” 

as defined in 12 U.S.C. § 1813(u) (as amended). 

(2) The prohibitions in paragraph (1) of this Article apply to the following 

institutions and agencies: 

(a)	 any insured depository institution, as defined in 12 U.S.C. § 1813(c); 
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(b) any institution treated as an insured depository institution under     

12 U.S.C. §§ 1818(b)(3), (b)(4) or (b)(5), including, but not limited 

to, bank holding companies and any subsidiary of such institution, or 

treated as a savings and loan holding company or subsidiary under 

12 U.S.C. § 1818(b)(9) (as amended); 

(c)	 any insured credit union under the Federal Credit Union Act; 

(d)	 any institution chartered under the Farm Credit Act of 1971; 

(e)	 any appropriate Federal depository institution regulatory agency; and 

(f)	 the Federal Housing Finance Board and any Federal Home Loan 

Bank. 

(3) The prohibitions of paragraphs (1) and (2) of this Article shall cease to 

apply with respect to a particular institution if Respondent obtains the prior written 

consent of both the Comptroller and the institution's “appropriate Federal financial 

institutions regulatory agency,” as defined in 12 U.S.C. § 1818(e)(7)(D) (as amended). 

Article IV 

WAIVERS 

(1)	 By executing this Order, Respondent waives: 

(a)	 Any and all rights to the issuance of a Notice of Intention to Prohibit 

Further Participation under 12 U.S.C. § 1818(e); 
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(b) Any and all rights to a hearing and a final agency decision pursuant 

to 12 U.S.C. § 1818(e) and 12 C.F.R. Part 19; 

(c)	 Any and all rights to seek judicial review of this Order; 

(d)	 Any and all rights in any way to contest the validity of this Order in 

any way; 

(e)	 Any and all claims for fees, costs or expenses against the 

Comptroller, or any of his agents or employees, related in any way 

to this enforcement matter or this Order, whether arising under 

common law or under the terms of any statute, including, but not 

limited to, the Equal Access to Justice Act, 5 U.S.C. § 504 and       

28 U.S.C. § 2412; and 

(f)	 Any and all rights to assert a “double jeopardy” claim in the event of 

a criminal prosecution brought by the Department of Justice, and any 

and all rights to assert a “res judicata” claim in the event of a civil 

action brought by another agency within the United States 

government, for the acts which form the basis for the issuance of this 

Order. 

(2) This Order constitutes a settlement of the enforcement proceeding against 

Respondent contemplated by the Comptroller, based on the conduct described in the 

Comptroller’s findings set forth in Article II of this Order.  The Comptroller agrees not to 
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institute further proceedings based on Respondent’s conduct with respect to the Bank, 

unless such conduct reoccurs. However, the conduct described in Article II may be used 

by the Comptroller in future enforcement proceedings to establish a pattern or practice of 

misconduct, or the continuation of a pattern or practice of misconduct.  This release shall 

not preclude or affect the Comptroller’s right to determine and ensure compliance with 

the terms and provisions of this Order. 

(3) This Order is not an adjudication on the merits.  If, at any time, the 

Comptroller deems it appropriate in fulfilling the responsibilities placed upon him by the 

several laws of the United States to take any action affecting Respondent, nothing in this 

Order shall in any way inhibit, estop, bar, or otherwise prevent the Comptroller from so 

doing, except as specified in paragraph (2) of this Article.  This Order does not limit any 

right, power, or authority of any other federal agency, or the United States, including, but 

not limited to, the Department of Justice, to bring actions as these entities deem 

appropriate. 

Article V 

CLOSING 

(1) This Order is and shall be effective upon its execution by the Comptroller, 

through his authorized representative whose hand appears below.  The Order shall remain 

effective and enforceable, except to the extent that, and until such time as, any provisions  
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of this Order shall have been amended, suspended, waived, or terminated in writing by 

the Comptroller. 

(2) This Order is intended to be, and shall be construed to be, a final order 

issued pursuant to 12 U.S.C. § 1818, and expressly does not form, and may not be 

construed to form, a contract binding the Comptroller or the United States.  Respondent 

expressly acknowledges that no officer or employee of the Comptroller has statutory or 

other authority to bind the United States, the United States Treasury Department, the 

Comptroller, or any other federal bank regulatory agency or entity, or any officer or 

employee of those entities, to a contract affecting the Comptroller’s exercise of his 

supervisory responsibilities. 

(3) The terms of this Order, including this paragraph, are not subject to 

amendment or modification by any extraneous expression, prior agreements, or prior 

arrangements between the parties, whether oral or written. 

(4) No separate promise or inducement of any kind has been made by the 

Comptroller, or his officers or employees, to cause or induce Respondent to consent to 

the issuance of this Order and/or to execute it. 
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IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the undersigned has hereunto set his hand. 

/s/Robert A. Morrill 11-26-12 
Date 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

/s/Kristina B. Whittaker 
Kristina B. Whittaker 
Deputy Comptroller for Special Supervision 

1/25/13 
Date 
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